

USAO 2020R00644/BL

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY**

FILED

JUL 27 2020

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Hon. John Michael Vazquez

AT 4:00

2:03 PM

Crim. No. 20-644

WILLIAM T. WALSH
CLERK

v.

18 U.S.C. § 2119(1)

18 U.S.C. §§ 111(a)(1) and (b)

WALLACE JOHNSON

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey, sitting at Newark,
charges:

COUNT ONE

(Carjacking)

On or about June 6, 2020, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere,
the defendant,

WALLACE JOHNSON,

did knowingly take a motor vehicle that had been transported, shipped, and
received in interstate and foreign commerce, namely a 2012 Dodge Durango,
from the person and presence of another, namely Victim 1, by force, violence,
and intimidation, with the intent to cause death or serious bodily harm.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2119(1).

COUNT TWO

(Assaulting, Resisting, or Impeding Certain Officers or Employees)

On or about June 6, 2020, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere,
the defendant,

WALLACE JOHNSON,

did forcibly assault, resist, oppose, intimidate and interfere with Victim-1, a person designated in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1114, namely a mail carrier employed by the United States Postal Service, while Victim-1 was engaged in and on account of, the performance of Victim-1's official duties, using a deadly or dangerous weapon, that is, a sharp object, and such acts inflicted bodily injury on Victim-1.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 111(a)(1) and (b).

Substitute Assets Provision
(Applicable to All Forfeiture Allegations)

If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant:

- a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
- b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
- c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
- d. has been substantially diminished in value; or
- e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without difficulty,

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853(p), as incorporated by 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c), to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the value of the above forfeitable property

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON


CRAIG CARPENITO
United States Attorney

CASE NUMBER: 20-⁶⁴⁴_(JMV)

**United States District Court
District of New Jersey**

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

WALLACE JOHNSON

INDICTMENT FOR

**18 U.S.C. § 2119(1)
18 U.S.C. §§ 111(a)(1) and (b)**

A True Bill,

Foreperson

CRAIG CARPENITO
*UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
NEWARK, NEW JERSEY*

BENJAMIN LEVIN
*ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY
973-645-2762*
